VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 2, 2024
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM
AGENDA

Village Trustees Meeting - July 2, 2024 - Zoom Link

Meeting I1D: 984 2249 8745
Passcode: 045593

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 98422498745 #,,,,*045593# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 98422498745 #,,,,*045593# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/acaJsrnL 7x

1. Call to Order:

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting(s):
a. June 4, 2024

4. Comments from Citizens:

5. Allocation Review & Possibly Approve:
a. 42 Cedar Drive- Seeking 1 add’l bedroom from 4BR to SBR

6. Electric Light Department Board of Commissioners Appointments:

7. Department Head Report(s):



https://zoom.us/j/98422498745?pwd=bEx6ZjZuYWJocmNjYlV0MCtvR0FRQT09
https://zoom.us/u/acaJsrnL7x

8. Discussion of Change of Procedure for Municipal Public Meetings:

9. Aoged Receivables Report:

10. Municipal Manager Update:

11. Other Business:

12. Set Date for Next Meeting: (August 6, 2024)

13. Sign Warrant Orders:

14. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts:

15. Adjourn:



VILLAGE OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

THE PUBLIC HEARING
TUESDAY, June 4, 2024
5:30 P.M.
REGULAR MEETING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Village Trustees Meeting — Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 984 2249 8745
Passcode: 045593

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 98422498745#,,,,%045593# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 984224987454,,,,%045593# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/uw/acaJsrnL7x

TRUSTEES PRESENT:

Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek Julie Nicoll
STAFF:

Brendan McNamara Rose Goings

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

Terry Carter Jean Strong

OTHERS PRESENT:

Scott Baitz Jay Lushinks John Merrow
Michelle Brandt Judy Luchinks Melissa Rockhill
Alan Couch

I. Call To Order

A. Bob Brandt, in accordance with 24 VSA 4441 and 24 VSA 4444, called the Public Hearing to
order at 5:30 p.m. (Entire Warning is included at the end of tonight’s minutes.)

B.  Terry Carter read a summary of the proposed changes to the regulations and advised that they
have been vetted by Attorney Chris Callahan, with the exception of one change that was in line
with new State requirements. Each item is listed below along with comments:



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 2 of 13

1) Section 220-Zoning Permit

a) Added: A Permit shall be required for any interior structural alteration, including but
not limited to a change in the number of bedrooms

b) Justin Hyjek said that he has “a bone to pick” with this. He said that Ryan Silvestri did
explain, but what if it is a closet in the bedroom.

¢) Bob Brandt said — or counters in the kitchen

d) Justin Hyjek said it is too broad. He said that the condos are a separate case. The
COA or HOA should be the ones to monitor this.

e) Terry Carter said it can be qualified by adding “substantial.”

f) Justin Hyjek suggested costs

g) Brendan McNamara said that “substantial” may be too broad.

h) Rose Goings said that the condos are notified that they need a permit from the Fire
Marshall and we (Planning and Zoning Office) need a copy of that permit. From the
permits, we will know which condos made drastic changes. She said that some condos
make renovations adding up to $600,000 and are not being taxed on those
improvements. Ryan Silvestri may catch them on the re-appraisal.

1) Terry Carter said it affects the town’s CLA

j) Justin Hyjek said we need more oversight on the condos, that is warranted, but he does
not want a regulation that is too intrusive or encompassing.

k) Terry Carter said that “substantial” may be the word.

1) Justin Hyjek said asked if a Fire Marshall permit is required on any work in the
condos.

m) Rose Goings said that “substantial improvement is 25% of the permitted project.”

n) Justin Hyjek said if it is in the definitions, we could use it.

0) Rose Goings said we need to work with the HOA or COA and try to get them to
cooperate.

p) Justin Hyjek asked if a member of the HOA or COA entity is responsible for any
needed permits

q) Rose Goings said she will talk to Chris Callahan

r) MOTION by Justin Hyjek to remove the changes and ask the Planning Commission to
discuss this with Chris Callahan.

s) Rose Goings said not to scrub the number of bedrooms.

t) Justin Hyjek amended his motion to have the sentence reworked and bring back to the
Trustees..

u) MOTION seconded by Julie Nicoll and passed unanimously.

2) Section 224-Expiration of Permit (State reg. change)

a) Land development associated with a site plan or conditional use approval shall commence -
within one year of the date the permit was issued. Unless land development associated with a
site plan or conditional use approval has been substantially completed within two years of the
date of approval, the zoning permit shall become null and void.

3) Section 255-Admin Review
a) Applicability: The Zoning Administrator is authorized to review and approve a change from an
existing retail use to a different retail use within the Village R-C District. (Changed this to
streamline the permitting process, a goal of our grant)

4) Section 260.3 General Standards



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 3 of 13

a) In accordance with 24 VSA §4414(3)(D), a multi-unit dwelling project consisting of four or fewer
units located in a district allowing multi-unit dwellings shall not be denied solely due to an undue
adverse effect on the character of the area affected. (State reg. change)

5) Section 290-Affordability Requirement

a) We replaced this section with new language from the state that included new state regs. A
minimum of 15% of all units developed (rounded) as part of a housing project MUST be
affordable..

b) All areas served by both municipal sewer and water infrastructure, affordable housing
development, including mixed-use development, may exceed density limitations for residential
developments by an additional 40 percent, and may exceed height limitations by one floor,
provided that the structure complies with the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code..

¢) Justin Hyjek noted that in the first part, it says a minimum of 15% must be affordable But, in the
second part, it says 40%.

d) Terry Carter said that was copied directly from the State Regulations

6) Section 410-Preservation District

a) Changed density from 10,000 square feet to 8,412 square feet. (state reg.) Changed the
amount of area to develop from 12% to 65%.

b) Had to move 2 unit dwellings, multi-unit dwellings and accessory dwelling units to permitted
uses to align with state regs.

¢) We chose to add Farmer's Market to permitted uses.

d) Added: Different materials may be used that keep in the character of the
Preservation District and solar panels are allowed.

¢) Justin Hyjek said that the increase from 12% to 65% was a very large increase.

f) Terry Carter said that the Planning Commission board members felt the property owner should be
able to cover more of the lot. Martha Harrison from MARC suggested 75%.

g) Rose Goings said this is the Preservation District and 65% is too high. The idea of the
Preservation District was to “preserve” the area. The goal was to be “pretty,” plant trees. She said
that the Preservation District regulations have not been touched since the District was started. She
would like to hold off on this. She suggested possibly changing it to “Historic District.” She
added that property owners can get tax credit in the Village Center. This could be called a
Neighborhood Development Area and owners there may be able to get tax credits.

h) Bob Brandt asked Rose Goings what percentage she has considered.

i) Rose Goings said no more than 20%.

j) Justin Hyjek said that the proposed increase to 65% is quite a jump.

k) Terry Carter said we pledged to have more affordable housing.

1) Justin Hyjek said he thinks it should be lower — 20% to 30%.

m) Julie Nicoll said 20%

n) Bob Brandt said the lot size minimum has been decreased to 1/5 acre by state regulations.

0) Rose Goings said that the coverage percentage would include impervious surfaces. She said you
won’t get “monster houses” there. She added that all of the existing houses are grandfathered.

p) Julie Nicoll said 20% is fair. She said that the people who lived in that area, voted to have the
Preservation District.

q) Board consensus was 20%.

r) Bob Brandt asked if there are any open lots in the Preservation District.

s) Justin Hyjek said yes, one at the corner of Main and Commonwealth.

t) Bob Brandt said then, basically everything is grandfathered.

u) Justin Hyjek said the homes there are old style, dating back to about 1832.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 4 of 13

v) MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to change the percentage from 12%
to 20%. Motion passed unanimously.

7) Section 420-Village Residential

a) State regs required us to add multi-unit dwelling( 4 or fewer), accessory dwelling
unit and structures to permitted uses.

b) Density is at 8,712 square feet .Lot coverage was changed to 75%, from 30%(non-
residential) and 50% (residential)

¢) Terry Carter said that it was 1/8 acre and was changed to 1/5 acres. Tt is a new district.

d) Lisha Klaiber asked for clarification. In Section 410, density is listed as 8,412 and was
called 1/5% acre. In this section, it says 8,712.

e) Terry Carter said it is a type, should be 8,712 and will be corrected in final draft.

f) Justin Hyjek said he thinks 75% is too high.

g) Terry Carter said that Martha Harrison and the Planning Commission board membetrs
agreed on it.

h) Justin Hyjek asked if there were any studies done on this.

i) Terry Carter said the Planning Commission was urged to take steps to increase housing

j) Rose Goings said Justin Hyjek had nailed it on the head. No studies were done. She said
that 75% is too high and they can build higher as long as it can get a permit from the Fire
Marshal and the Ludlow Fire Chief.

k) Justin Hyjek asked if they would consider changing the 75%.

) Terry Carter said should we leave it at 30%(non-residential) and 50% (residential)

m) Justin Hyjek said “if it’s not broke, don’t fix it.” He would like to keep it at 30%(non-
residential) and 50% (residential)

n) MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Justin Hvjek to keep lot coverage at
30% (non-residential) and 50% (residential).

0) Justin Hyjek asked if this will jeopardize future grant work

p) Terry Carter said no.

q) Motion passed unanimously.

8) Section 425-Village R-2
a) We created a new district with lower density (8,712 sq. feet) that permitted and conditional
uses are all about housing because several neighbors came to us wanting a change. The
change would make all of Andover Street residential from Bridge Street headed south. The
lot coverage we changed to 75%.
b) MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to change the lot coverage to
30%(non-residential) and S0% (residential) Motion passed unanimously.

9) Section 430-Village Res/Com
a) We moved several conditional uses to permitted to streamline the permitting process. State
regs required us to add multi-unit dwelling( 4 or fewer), accessory dwelling unit and
structures to permitted uses.
b) Density is at 8,712 square feet for residential and 5,000 for commercial

¢) We kept in the Covid outdoor dining regs.

10) Section 520-Misc. Requirements
a) There may be more than one principal use on a lot within the Village R-C District.
b) Terry Carter said an example would be to have an office downstairs and an apartment
upstairs.
¢) Rose Goings said we want more mixed uses.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 5 of 13

11) Section 530-Parking and Loading Requirements

a) New state regs. Required us to change:

b) Residential uses: . .-one parking space per dwelling unit, except in areas that are located
more than one-quarter mile from public parking, in which case 1.5 parking spaces per
dwelling unit are required (rounded up to the nearest whole number).

c) 2. Professional office/residence: one residential parking space, plus one additional parking
space for every four hundred (400) square feet of office space. Hotel, Inn, Motel, Tourist
Home, B&B: one space per bedroom Boarding/rooming House: one space per bedroom.

d) We added: Workforce Housing,: As required by the DRB in required districts. In the
Commercial District 1. parking spot required per bedroom.

12) Section 540: Signs
a) This section is completely reworked and changed. It was worked on by the previous PC
intensively. This board tweaked a few things, added clarifying language in places. We
added to the prohibited section: Repetitive flags or pennants and Signs with profanity.

13) Section 550.1: Noise

a) We added on our zoning lawyer's suggestion:

550.9- Individuals share a private right for recourse by filing a nuisance complaint with the
police or the district court.

b) Justin Hyjek asked what are the requirements for noise levels

¢) Terry Carter said the ordinance is based on decibels.

d) Brendan McNamara said we may have to craft a new noise ordinance

e} Bob Brandt said that Chief Billings said he can’t enforce what we currently have.

f) Brendan McNamara said that enforceability is up to Planning and Zoning. We need to give
the Police the tools that aren’t so cumbersome that they are a burden to enforce. We need to
talk to the Police and Fire chiefs about what can be enforced and how to enforce it.

g) Rose Goings said if it is a zoning regulation, the party would receive a 7-day notice. If it is
an ordinance, they would be issued a ticket.

h) Justin Hyjek asked if Chris Callahan can assist.

14) Article 6: Flood Plain Management Ordinance
a) We only changed that fuel tanks would no longer have a height requirement but would still
have to be securely anchored because Rose pointed out that fuel companies are refusing to
fill tanks up that high. We are currently working on this entire section, updating it because
it is 10 years old.
b) Rose Goings said that fuel tanks must be above Base Flood Elevation, but then they are too
high and the fuel companies won’t fill them.

15) Article 7-Definitions
a) Many were updated with state definitions, some were eliminated because they appear
nowhere in the document, missing ones were added.

II. Action on the proposed additions and changes to the Village of Ludlow Zoening and Flood
Hazard Regulations

A.  Melissa Rockhill said the lot sizes are small and asked what they are trying to do.
B.  Justin Hyjek said these are state regulations



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 6 of 13

TI1.

C.  Melissa Rockhill asked if they have taken into consideration the dams and flooding. What if
the dams break.

D.  Justin Hyjek said as a board, we are against the 1/5™ acre but there is nothing we can do about
it,

E.  Rose Goings said that zoning is for everyone and the State did not consider ski towns and
affordable housing

F.  Melissa Rockhill said these rules won’t create affordable housing

G. Rose Goings said they will create more Short Term Rentals. She said that she was against this.
She said the VLCT testified at the hearings and are not happy with zoning for all that doesn’t fit
all towns.

H. Terry Carter said we have to abide by the state regulations

Adjourn

A. MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to adjourn. Motion passed

unanimously.
B. Public Hearing closed at 6:16 p.m.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 7 of 13

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2024
TRUSTEES PRESENT:
Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek Julie Nicoll
STAFF:
Brendan McNamara Rose Goings
OTHERS PRESENT:
Scott Baitz Alan Couch Judy Luchinks
Michelle Brandt Jay Lushinks

1. Call to Order

A. Bob Brandt called the meeting to order at 6:20 p.m. He led with the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Consideration of any Changes. Additions or Removals to the Agenda
A. Brendan McNamara said that per community member request, they will move Item 11, Municipal
Manager Updates to right after Item #4- Comments from Citizens,. Minutes will be agenda item
order
B. Brendan McNamara said they would table item #8 — Allocation of ARPA funds until the July

meeting. We did not receive the grant for paving of Lower Mountain Road and will have to

allocate funds to it. This will affect the overall allocations and sidewalks.

Justin Hyjek asked if we have met with Okemo and asked if they would be able to “pitch in.”

Brendan McNamara said he will do that

Alan Couch asked if there is an agreement with Okemo for maintenance of the Access Road.

Brendan McNamara said yes, but it does not speak to that kind of maintenance. Okemo does

maintenance on West Hill Road. We do have the time before we have to allocate the funds

(12/31/2024.)

G. Brendan McNamara said they will need to add Review of Municipal Manager to Executive
Session.

mmo o

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting

A. Bob Brandt advised that the minutes to be reviewed are from May 7, 2024

B. MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the minutes from the
regular meeting on May 7, 2024 as submitted. Motion passed unanimously.

4. Comments from Citizens

A. There were none



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 8 of 13

5. Consider Changes to the Village Zoning Regulations as Proposed by the Planning Commission

A. Bob Brandt said they covered this at the public hearing

B Brendan McNamara said the Planning Commission will come back to this board with the revisions
that were requested.

C. Bob Brandt said he will talk to Chief Billings about the noise regulation and how to measure
decibels or a more realistic way to enforce a noise regulation.

6. Allocation Review and Possibly Approve

A. 13 South Hill Street - Seeking a separate — 1 bedroom unit
i.  Brendan McNamara advised that the request is for an additional unit with one bedroom.
ii. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to approve the addition of one
unit with one bedroom. Motion passed unanimously.

B. 15 Commonwealth Avenue - 1 additional bedroom for total of 4 bedrooms
i.  Brendan McNamara advised that this is a vacant lot that were recently here to correct the
allocation to 1 to 3 bedrooms. This is a request to increase that allocation from 3 bedrooms to 4
bedrooms.
ii. MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Justin Hyjek to increase the sewer allocation
from 3 to 4 bedrooms. Motion passed unanimously.

C. Land Lot on Spaulding Farm Road - New Construction of a 6 bedroom house.
i.  Brendan McNamara advised that the request is for an allocation for new construction of a 6
bedroom house.
ii. MOTION by Justin Hvjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to approve the sewer allocation
for a 6 bedroom home. Motion passed unanimously.

7. Department Head Reports

A. Sewer Department
i.  Brendan McNamara the staff noticed that our food intake dropped in half in less than a week
and the bugs were dying.. The flow was down and the effluent did not look great. They added
SternPAC to help with settling and were able to stay within our permit.
ii.  Justin Hyjek advised that there had been water main breaks and will the town be replacing the
sewer lines.

iii,  Brendan McNamara said that Water Department is doing an Asset Management Study and it
would be wise to also do one for the sewer department. The one for the Water department has
given him a great overview of the infrastructure — with spreadshect and maps. He said see
what should be on the top of the repairs list. The Water study was funded by the state and he
will look into funding for a study of the sewer lines.

iv.  Justin Hyjek asked if they regularly test the water.

v.  Brendan McNamara said weekly. He said the state mandates testing. He added that our water
is about as perfect as possible.

8. AARP Funds Allocation - tabled until the July meeting




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 9 of 13

9.  Aged Receivables

A.

Brendan McNamara advised that they are doing astoundingly good. Outstanding amount is
$18,357 with only $1,000 for sewer. He said some of the outstanding bills are on payment plans.
He said they can’t shut off the wastewater. The last billing cycle, they billed $675,000 and have
collected all but $11,395.

Justin Hyjek said that one - over 120 days — owes $4,374

10. Other Business

A,

1,

1.

ii.
iv,

ii.
iii.

ii.

1il.

Crosswalks
Justin Hyjek said that some of the crosswalks signs are in the middle of the road, some are on
the sides. He would love to see them all in the center of the double yellow line.
Bob Brandt agrees, adding that the crosswalk signs in the middle of the road do help to slow
traffic.
Julie Nicoll also agreed..
Brendan McNamara said they had lost ¥4 of the crosswalk signs in the flood last year. He said
he climbed down the hill, by the Mill, and pulled one out of the water. They have ordered
more.
Justin Hyjek said one of his goals is to make the village more pedestrian friendly and have
alternative transportation. He said that Main Street is a state highway, but it is our village.
Ludlow Electric
Brendan McNamara advised that the board of the Electric Department is down to one person.
Shannon Barton is still on the board. Now, it falls to this board to appoint new board members
who will serve until Village Meeting in March. This means that they cannot make any
Decisions until they have a quorum. Effective immediately, The Village Board of Trustees will
be accepting letters of interest from any resident who is on the Village Voter Checklist and is
interested in becoming a member of their Electric Light Board of Commission until the next
Election Date held in March 2025. The Trustees will appoint new board members at their
meeting on July 2, 2024. He added, that if we are unable to get applicants, and an immediate
decision is required, it defaults to the Town Manager and Electric Company foreman or this
board. He said that he thinks they will be able to wait until July.
Justin Hyjek said this board will assist in any way possible.
Brendan McNamara said he wants to put an agenda item on the July meeting and invite
Shannon Barton and he foreman to help this board know what is going on and what the future
looks like. He said the department is an entity of the town.
Green Space
Justin Hyjek asked what is going on at the corner of Main Street and Commonwealth Avenue
where the house was demolished and debris removed.
Brendan McNamara said he will look into it. He will research what was supposed to have been
done.
Justin Hyjek said the town paid to remove the debris. He hopes that an agreement had been
made.

11.  Municipal Manager Updates

A

i

Joint Board Meeting — Select Board and Village Trustee

Brendan McNamara advised they will hold a joint board meeting on Monday, June 17, 2024 at



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 10 of 13

1i.
1il.
iv.

il.
iil.

v.

VL.

6:00 p.m. The purpose will be to start discussions, in a public forum, to get input on a Local
Options Tax and possible merger of the Town and Village.
Julie Nicoll suggested inviting Logan Nicoll.
Justin Hyjek agreed
Brendan McNamara said he would and also would invite Carol Lighthall from the Chamber of
Commerce. With regard to merging the Town and Village, the questions will start with why do
we need to do this and what will be the process. He said that his opinion is that it needs to be
done.
Fire Chief Peter Kolenda Retirement
Brendan McNamara said that there will gathering on June 27% from 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at
Post 36 of the American Legion. The formal retirement ceremony will be held on June 30™.
Information will be publicized. He has been chief over 25 years. It will start at the fire station
and include a “ride home” for Chief Kolenda in a fire truck.
Justin Hyjek expressed thanks to Chief Kolenda for his dedicated service to Ludlow.
New Fire Chief
Brendan McNamara said that Ben Whalen will start on June 10", to have some time to spend
with Chief Kolenda. He will attend the Select Board and Trustees’ meetings in July
Memorial Day
i. Brendan McNamara said Memorial Day weekend was great. Brendan McNamara said
thanks to the American Legion, EMS Services, Buildings and Grounds and all who helped
make it a nice Memorial Day in town.
Timber Inn
i. Brendan McNamara said that asbestos was found in 2 bathrooms and they are waiting on the
abatement before continuing. This should be done within the next week. The state has
given us a 30 day extension - it was supposed be down by June 10™, now 30 days later.
Village Clean Up
Brendan McNamara advised that they are hoping to get to some “beautification” projects in the
Village that they did not get to last year, such as cleaning up under the guard rails and getting
the fence down at the dog park.
EMS Department “Summer Weather Briefing”
Brendan McNamara advised that the EMS Services will be scheduling a briefing within the
next week to go over things people can do.
Dams
Brendan McNamara said that the bids have gone out to replace the spillways at the dams. He
said that this will be 100% covered by the USDA The project is currently out to bid and Sites 5
and 3 will — hopefully — be repaired by July or August. The larger project - the dam
rehabilitation is in the engineering phase and that takes about 2 years. The engineering is
covered 100%. We have to look at funding options for the construction - $40,000,000. He
said we are making good progress.
Jay Lushinks asked who is responsible to clean up the debris along the Black River.
Brendan McNamara said the State owns the rivers and along the banks, it would be the property
owners. He said the governor wants another Green Up day. We need the state to allocate funds
to do the cleanup. The state needs to look at it. We are trying to do flood recovery while still
operating the town. We need the funds and manpower. There is also liability. We can’t get
into the rivers. He said that he and Ron Tarbell went up East Lake Road and there were downed
trees in the stream. We can’t, by State law, get in the river to remove them. We don’t have the
answers.
Jay Lushinks said that by his house, when they cleaned up the parking lot at the Dental Office,
they pushed it towards Brookhaven and the debris is still there.
Judy Lushinks asked if the town is doing anything.
Justin Hyjek said we have the alert system.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 11 of 13

vii.  Brendan McNamara said we are cleaning culverts and ditches.
viii.  Justin Hyjek said that we need to get the debris cleared up by Subway.
ix.  Brendan McNamara agreed and said if things there are not cleaned up, they may move.
x.  Jay Lushinks said that the federal government just allocated $90,000,000 to the state and
wonders how much Ludlow might get.
xi.  Judy Lushinks asked about the Little League Field.
xii.  Brendan McNamara said it may be relocated to the high school.

12.  Set Date for Next Meeting — July 2, 2024

A.  Brendan McNamara said that the Trustees meeting will be immediately following the Public
Hearing for the Zoning regulations.

13.  Sign Warrant Orders

A. Warrant orders were signed

14. Possible Executive Session/ Personnel/Contracts — Possible Annual Pay Raises

A.  Brendan McNamara noted that an Executive Session is needed for Personnel and Possible annual
pay raises.

MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to enter into Executive Session for
Personnel and Possible Pay Raises. Motion passed unanimously.

Board entered into Executive Session at 7:07 p.m.

No action taken

MOTION byv Justin Hvjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to exit into Executive Session.
Motion passed unanimously.

Board exited into Executive Session at 7:30 p.m.

mon W

!'ﬂ

15.  Adjourn

A. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Julie Nicoll to adjourn. Metion passed

unanimously.
B.  Meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Lisha Klaiber

Bob Brandt, Chairman of Trustees ) Julie Nicoll

Justin Hyjek, Vice Chair



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 12 of 13

Village Trustees 2024
Tuesday — June 4, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.

Public Hearing Notice

Hybrid Meeting - Heald Auditorium/Zoom

Village of Ludlow Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulation amendments

Pursuant to 24 V.S.A. §4441 and §4444, notice is hereby given of a public hearing by Ludlow’s Village
Trustees to hear comments regarding proposed amendments to the Ludlow Zoning & Flood Hazard
Regulations, including the zoning map. The public hearing will take place on Tuesday, June 4, 2024,
beginning at 5:30 pm.

You may attend the Public Hearing in-person at the following address:
Ludlow Town Hall
37 Depot Street
Ludlow, Vermont 05149

Or via Zoom:

Planning Commission Special Meeting Agenda June 4. 2024 - Zoom Link
Meeting ID: 984 2249 8745

Passcode: 045593

Comments regarding the proposed amendments to the Ludlow Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations and
the zoning map may be submitted verbally at the Public Hearing. Written comments may also be
submitted via email to Brendan McNamara, Ludlow’s Town Manager at tmanager(a@'tds.net or Terry
Carter, Ludlow’s Planning Commission Chair at trngcarter@gmail.com.

Statement of purpose:

The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Village of Ludlow Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations,
including the zoning map, is to:

e implement both the 2019 Municipal Plan and Act 47 (the HOME Act);

o further village revitalization by facilitating commerce in the Residential-Commercial district;

o make it easier to permit additional housing of various types, including affordable housing and
senior housing, throughout the village;

o comply with the provisions of 24 VSA §4412, 4413 and 4414.

Please see the Planning Commission’s report on the amendments for more detailed information.
Geographic areas affected:

Portions of these amendments apply to all areas of the Village.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees and Public Hearing June 4, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 13 of 13

List of section headings affected:

The following new sections were added to the Ludlow Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations:
e Section 255, Administrative Review
e Section 290, Affordability Requirements
e Section 425, Village Residential-2 (new zoning district)

In addition, amendments are proposed which modify the following sections of the Ludlow Zoning &
Flood Hazard Regulations:

e In Article 1, Section 140
In Article 2, Sections 220, 221, 221.5, 224, 226, 227, 260, 260.3, 270.5, 280, and 290.
In Article 4, Section 410, 420, new section 425 and 430 (including supplemental standards for
outside dining and curbside pick-up).

o In Article 5, Section 510.1, 510.3, 520.2 (eliminated), 520.3, 520.8, 530.1, 530.3, and 540, 540.3,
540.4, 540.5, 540.6, 550, 550.1 and new section 550.9
In Article 6, Section 660.

e In Article 7, a number of new definitions were added, definitions that aren’t used in the
document were eliminated, and many existing definitions were revised.

e Minor clarifications and corrections were made throughout the document.

The full text of the amendments to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulations, including
the revised zoning map and the Planning Commission’s report, are available online at
https://www.ludlow.vt.us. The proposed amendments and report can also be reviewed in hard copy

format in the Town Clerk’s Office in the Ludlow Town Hall located at 37 Depot Street, Ludlow,



Town = $780 per bedroom U Town

village = 8546 per bedroom VILLAGE OF LUDLOW [

RECEIVEDRESIDENTIAL OR COMMERCIAL BUILDING WASTEWATER SYSTEM CONNECTION

Tre undersigred nereby reguest connection to the nunicipal wastewater

dispesal system for the fellowing, to be is ued on the hasis of the
representation contained herein:

MUN‘CIPAL OFFICE 42 Cedar Drive

Property Location: S

Land Records: Book No.  MapNo.__ __ BlockNo.__ Parcel No. 23030301999_ _

Loy, Bertrand & Maria ~ Telephone: § 978-394-4449

N Village

Property Owner:
Mailing Address: 1409 Monument Street Concord MA 01742

Residence {Circle): ’\"gi_ng!e F ;;xﬁﬂ Multiple Family  (Number of Units__ )

A (Tadd'l

Number of Bedrooms in each unit; Convert from 4BR to 58R and hook to new MH structure
A An e ot AR s . e VAR S P A a8 n o ——— Jr

Estimated Flows: . e e e

Commereial; Nature of Business:

Number of Units/Employees:

Type of Discharge to System: _ Estimated Flows:
Construction of Wastewater Collection Main (length/dimension):

Infiltration:

NOt yet Chosen aS Of 6/1 3/24 I Telephone:

Contractor:

Mailing Address: — =

PLANS AND SPECIFICATION FOR ANY SEWER CONSTRUCTION MUST BE ATTACEED. WORKSHEETS
FOR CALCULATION OF WASTEWATER DISPOSAL ALLOCATION MUST BE ATTACHED AS RECESSARY.
AS BUILT PLANS ARE REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION OF ANY WASTEWATER COLLECTION MAINS.

In Consideration of the granting of this permit, the undersigned agrees:
1. Toaccept and abide b\ all provisions of the Village of Ludlow’s Sgwer Ordinance. and all other applicable

regulations as may be ame ndgd
2. To maintain the building sewer service at no expense to the Village of Ludiow.
3. To notify the Municipal Manager when the buildi }g sewer I‘; ready for inspection and connection to the main

system, but before any portion of the wnrk m cmued /// ‘,} /
o (zy,//ﬁ, (« - pATE. June 13, 2024

APPLICANT/AGENT S SIGNATURE:

kkkkkdkhkkkkrksrkxd FOR OFFICE USE ONLY Thkhkkkhkkhhhkdkrkdhkkix

Application No. "‘{ 10 Date Received: \P \ B \3‘1 By: b:\ L_,!W

| osvm & SYLOL
Wastewater Treatmeni Capacity Required: 2 % o Connection Fee: k.:l o, Date Lll[) JW

Date of Approval by Village Board of Trustecs: __ ~ Date of Invoice: o

Date Payment Received: _ DateofInspechon:




Municipal Offices
Ph. 802-228-2841
=, Fax 802-228-2813

s M townhall@tds.net

village@tds.net

Municipal Manager
P.O. Box 359
Ludlow, VT 05149-0359

l!:,? b .

Lul'o, erlﬁnt

A Better Place To Live, Work & Play

May 30, 2024

Maria Loy
42 Cedar Drive
Ludlow, VT 05149

Dear Maria,

1 am in receipt of your email regarding the additional bedroom request and the moving of
your original hook on to our municipal wastewater system to another location that would
require you to obtain authorization from the HOA to be able to cross their private road in
order to hook on to this new location.

Our Water/Wastewater Department has no issue with you being disconnected from one
location and moving your hook on to another location as long as you obtain the HOA
authorization to allow you to cross their private road for this change in hook on locations to

take place.

Once you obtain their authorization letter/email, you must attach that authorization to your
application for additional allocation to be presented to the Village Trustees so they can
approve the additional allocation and hook- on change.

Please let me know if you should have any further questions.

incerely,
Diane Knight

Municipal Clerk
Town & Village of Ludlow

“4 Better Place to Live, Work & Play”



PROFESSTIONAL OFICES
75 Main Street

Ludlow, VT 05149
802-228-3496 E-mail LehtonenLaw @aol.com

LAW OFFICE PROFESSIONAL SPORTS AGENT
CONSULTING.
Andrea J. Lehtonen JD, MSW Marc Rubin, PhD. Mathematics, MBA
Health and Mental Health Law Mathematical sports analytics
Advanced Estate Planning and Litigation assisting professional sports agents
Elder Law in professional sports contract

negotiations in baseball and hockey
Licensed to practice in all
Massachusetts Courts, and
The United States Federal Court.
Boston, Massachusetts

June 11, 2024
Brendan McNamara
Municipal Manager Ludlow, VT
37 Depot Street
Ludlow, VT 05149

Board of Trustees

Ludlow Electric Light Dept
PO Box 359

Ludlow, VT 05149

Hand Delivered fo offices
Dear Mr. McNamara and Electric Dept Trustees:
The purpose of this letter is to express my potential interest in becoming involved in Ludliow
Village and Town management as a volunteer for a possible committee or board | might be
helpful to.
| am a Ludiow native, brought up at 75 Main Street, moved there as an 8 month old baby

with my mother after my father died of cancer at age 34. We moved in with my mother’s
parents Leo and Angelina Petraglio and | graduated from Black River High School in 1971.



The property at 75 Main has been owned by my family for 100 years and my family has been
active in Ludiow. My cousins are the Pallotta family and Cole family. My cousin Loran
Greenslet ran the water and sewer dept for many years and his name is on the building.

My husband Marc Rubin and | permanently moved back to the Ludlow homestead
approximately one year ago.

| have been thinking now about getting involved with the vilage and town in some way and
that is the purpose of this letter.

| have enclosed my resume. Please excuse the long length of the resume...it is my latest and
had to be written in great detdit to be submitted to Massachusetts courts where | have
served as an expert witness in particular cases due fo me two professional degrees and
experiences.

Please let me know if | can be helpful and | will considerate it. You should know that | am
very parficular to the needs of local residents as this is my home town.

Sincerely,
T KA

Andrea Lehtonen



ANDREA JEAN LEHTONEN, JD, MSW
75 Main Street
Ludiow, Vt 05149
802-228-3496 LehtonenLaw@aol.com

EDUCATION:
Sept. 1993 UNIVERSITY OF NH SCHOOL OF LAW
to Concord, NH
May, 1996 JURIS DOCTOR (JD)
Law Clerk Intern for Judge Stephen McAuliffe,
and the late Atty. Beau Biden
US Federal District Court for the State of NH
- Competed in National Health Law Moot Court
Competition -15! place brief
Sept. 1975 BOSTON UNIVERSITY GRADUATE SCHOOL OF
to SOCIAL WORK
May 1977 Boston, MA
MASTER”S DEGREE, (MSW) in Administration and
Mental Health Casework
- US Administration of Health, Education, and Welfare
Fellowship
- Two fulltime years in residency
- Internships in major Boston facilities
Sept. 1971 UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT
to Burlington, VT
May 1975 BA in psychology awarded with College Honors
LAW EXPERIENCE:
April 2010 THE LAW OFFICE OF ANDREA J. LEHTONEN
to Greenville, NH and Ludlow, VT
present

Consulting attorney for Massachusetts attorneys
Involving writing legal briefs and memorandums of
law



March 2002
to
April 2010

Sept. 1996
to
March 2002

BAR ADMISSIONS

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS

THE LAW OFFICE OF ANDREA J. LEHTONEN
Fitchburg and Acton, MA

Owner and Principal Attorney
Specialized practice in health, elder and disability law,
guardianship and guardianship litigation, estate planning,

CIOTA, STARR, AND VANDER LINDEN LAW FIRM
Fitchburg and Worcester, MA

Associate Attorney

Specialized practice in health, elder and disability law,
guardianship and guardianship litigation, estate planning
Cy pres court petition (reformation of charitable trusts)

Admitted to practice law in the Commonwealth of MA
and the Federal District Court for the District of MA

“ Assisted Living”, Chapter 22, Estate Planning for the
Aging or Incapacitated Client in Massachusetts, 1998
Pub. By Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education.

“ Current Status of Medicaid Liens, Estate Recovery in
Massachusetts”, Massachusetts Lawyers Weekly,
March, 1997.

“ Staring Down the Devil, Rule 404(b) (admission of
past bad acts), NH Bar Journal, Spring, 1996.

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE:

Developmental Disabilities

Sept. 1988
to

Aug. 1993

MOORE CENTER SERVICES
Manchester, NH

Assistant Executive Director for NH'’s largest regional
private human services company providing services to
the developmentally disabled with $12 million budget, 320
employees, and 12 subcontractor agencies



Major Duties :

Mental Health

Nov. 1985
fo
June 1988

Assisting executive director in operations management,
ensuring regulatory compliance, development and
interpretation of personnel policies, and assuming duties of
executive director in her absence.

Planning and Development of comprehensive community
care system .

Major responsibility for quality assurance evaluations.

Liaison with NH Division of Mental Health and
Developmental Services

Working with Board of Directors , Advisory, and Parent
Groups

Major Accomplishments:

Developed human rights activities from an adversarial
program into a partnership program with staff.

Established region wide quality assurance and training
activities

MA. DEPT. OF MENTAL HEALTH
WORCESTER STATE HOSPITAL
Unit Director

Worcester, MA

Major Duties:

Management of four hospital units in the largest public
psychiatric hospital in Massachusetts including
responsibility for four hospital units (1) Developmental
Disabilities-Dual Diagnosis, (2) Medical-Psychiatric,
(3) Psychogeriatric, and (4) Adult Psychiatric

Manpower analysis, planning, recruitment, and retention of
200+ staff

Employee and union relations including dispute resolution
and contract negotiation

Treatment evaluations



Elderly Services
Nov. 1883
to

Nov.1985

Oct. 1981
to

Nov. 1983

Coordination of accreditation activities
Major Accomplishments:

Maintained lowest formal employee grievance rate in
hospital

Increased professional staff by 150%

EXECUTIVE OFFI CE OF ELDER AFFAIRS
Boston, MA

Program Evaluation Manager/Team Leader for cabinet
level office responsible for coordinating all state funded
elderly services in the State of MA.

Major Duties:

Managing team responsible for audit and evaluation of 27
state funded corporations administering over $100 million
and providing services to 75,000 clients.

Regulation development and research
Major Accomplishments:

Expansion of audit focus to include overall management
assessment

Served on Governor Dukakis’ special task force on
Alzheimer's Disease

SOMERVILLE-CAMBRIDGE ELDER SERVICES
Somerville, MA

Associate Director for Program Management for
private Corporation funded by the MA Executive Office
of Elder Affairs providing elder services in the cities of
Cambridge and Sometville, MA

Major Duties:

Management of all corp. programs including staff of 70
and 7 dept, heads, negotiation and monitoring of 7
subcontracts totaling $4 million, public relations and
marketing



Jan. 1980
fo
March 1981

May 1977
to

July 1980

Establishment and maintenance of relationships with
medical community including Cambridge, Mount Auburn,
Somerville, and Youville Hospitals, and local home health
agencies.

Direct supervision of Adult Protective Services Program

Major Accomplishments:

Developing and submitting plan proposal to Dept. of Elder
Affairs and MA. Medicaid for Social Health Maintenance
Program coordinating funding for home care utilizing
reimbursement capitation. Plan is now in effect in MA

UNIVERSITY OF MA MEDICAL SCHOOL AND MEDICAL
CENTER
Worcester. MA

Chief Medical Social Worker for Neurology Dept. and the
Unit for the Study of Aging and Geriatric Medicine
including inpatient and outpatient services and training of
medical students

Major Duties:

Clinical social work on specialized medical service for
the aging

Multidisciplinary training for medical students on aging
issues
Major Accomplishments:

Significantly reduced number of AND’s (Administratively
Necessary Days in geriatric in patient population

FRANKLIN COUNTY HOME CARE CORP.
Turner Falls, MA

Home Care Dept. Manager for nonprofit agency
providing health and social service for eiders

Major Duties :

Management of $900,000 service budget, supervision of
10 employees at 3 sites,



TEACHING EXPERIENCE:

1985
to
1988

1995
1996

1982

fo
1985

PERSONAL INTERESTS

Major Accomplishments:

Managed Dept. smoothly through staff and budget growth
of 100%

Development of first public guardianship program in MA

NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE GRADUATE SCHOOL
HUMAN SERVICES
Adjunct Instructor — Program Evaluation

SOUTHERN NH GRADUATE SCHOOL OF BUSINESS
Adjunct Instructor-Health Care Management

BOSTON COLLEGE GRADUATE SCHOOL OF SOCIAL
WORK

BOSTON UNIVERSITY GRADUATE SCHOOL OF
SOCIAL WORK

BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY HELLER GRADUATE
SCHOOL

Clinical Field Instructor- Administration and
Management

Riding and training horses, animal welfare, interior
design,



[ _lé’[{q;e_ of Ladlow Electric Light Department

Since 1900

www.ludiowelectric.com 802-228-7766 info@ludlowelectric.com

LETTER OF INTENT TO BE CONSIDERED TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR

THE VILLAGE OF LUDLOW ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

Print Name and Physical Address:
VL oe ﬁ‘%@ JW:m

25 W W\ RA
ot lowo, Vi o051\ q

Signature

Submit to: The Village of Ludlow
Board of Trustees
PO Box 359
Ludlow, VT 05149

b\ bl Ak

Date

9 POND STREET ~ LUDLOW, VERMONT 05149-1231
BUSINESS OFFICE: 802-228-7766 ~ FAX 802-228-7770

SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE: PHONE 8002-228-3721 ~ FAX 802-228-8988

EMAIL: info@ludlowelectric.com

RECEIVED

MUNICIPAL OFFICE



May 8, 2024

Village of Ludiow Electric Light Department

9 Pond Street
Ludiow, VT 05149

Attn: Board of Commissioners
Shannon Barton, Chairperson

Please accept my request to be appointed Commissioner of the Electric Light Department filling
the vacant seat resulting from the resignation of Robert Brandt. | have served on the Ludiow
Seiect Board, Planning and DRB commissions while presently serving as the Chair of the Board

of Civil Authority.

Do not hesitate to contact me if more information if needed.

Regards,

Oson Srepa

Jean S. Strong
7 Parker Ave
tudiow, VT 0514
802-779-7132
jsmorrillvt@yahoo.com




Vitiage of Ludiow Electric Light Department

s FG00

www udiowelectric.com BO-22R-1766 infofhudiowslsctnic.com

LETTER OF INTENT TO BE CONSIDERED TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
THE VILLAGE OF LUDLOW ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

Print Name and Physical Address:
EARL WASHBURN

36 MAIN ST/TRLR 1

7 ‘ | | ¢ 4 j
L W\,(Z ; l//)wbzlxﬂMé/ j’lim éfzyzca*

Signature Date

Submit to: The Village of Ludlow
Board of Trustees
PO Box 359
Ludliow, VT 05149

9 POND STREET ~ LUDLOW, VERMONT 05149-1231
BUSINESS OFFICE: 802-228-7766 ~ FAX 802-228-7770
SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE: PHONE 8002-228-3721 ~ FAX 802-228-8988
EMAIL: info@ludlowelectric.com



RECEIV
=b June 13, 2024

Village Trustees MUNICIPAL OFFICE
Village of Ludiow

37 Depot Street
Ludlow, VT 05149

Trustees of the Village of Ludlow,

I would like to be considered for one of the vacant positions on the Electric Light
Commission. | have been a resident of the Village for 37 years and have
enormous respect and admiration for our Electric Light Department. | know
there are potentially big changes on the horizon, and | think that my past
experience on the Ludlow Planning Commission and the Town of Ludlow
Selectboard would be valuable to the Electric Light Commission in this
moment.

Logan Nicoll
11 Depot Street



Tori Blanchard

From: Brendan McNamara <tmanager@tds.net>
Sent: Tuesday, June 25, 2024 9:57 AM

To: Tori Blanchard

Subject: FW: Village Electric Board

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Please add this to the Trustees packet of letters for the light dept.

Brendan A. McNamara

Municipal Manager

Town and Village of Ludlow, Vermont
Office: 802-228-2860

Cell: 802-245-4990

From: Peter Girouard <thehoneydewman@comcast.net>
Sent: Tuesday, June 25, 2024 7:58 AM

To: tmanager@tds.net

Subject: Village Electric Board

Sent from my iPad
Brendan, I'm intrested in being on the board. | don’t want ludlow to lose the electric co.

| feel | can help with good common sense . If you could put my name in, | would appreciate it. Thank you , Peter
Girouard . 3 whisperingpines pines road , Ludlow ( village)



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - June
2024
Transfer Station
o Crushed & Load Dumpsters
= Demo

= cardboard

o Turning compost
Equipment Maintenance

o Police Cruiser Maintenance

o Ambulance Maintenance

o Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment
Trees & Brush

o Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

Other/Miscellaneous

o FEMA documentation
Cold patching on going
Ditching cleaning Culverts East Hill
Grading Roads
Chloride Gravel Rds.
Apply Gravel/Surpac on Gravel Rds.
Work on cleaning up Pit (Flood debris)
Ditching/Cleanup West hill Dam
Painting Crosswalks/Stop bars
Replace Cross Culvert S. Hill & Love Joy brook Rd.
Assist with Water leak W. Hill
Road side mowing
Replace Cross Culvert E. Hill

0 00 O0O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0ODO0OO0

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell
Highway Foreman



Village of Ludlow Sewer Department

Monthly Report for June, 2024

All's well at the Treatment Plant. The numbers are all good.
The treatment plant recovered nicely after the upset in May. Casella
brought us seed sludge from the Rutland WWTF and the plant is now

running as good as it always does.

All equipment is working as it should for normal, day-to-day process
control.

F.E.M.A. was at the treatment plant for a three-day long site inspection.

We received our new Auto Sampler granted to Ludlow from The Water
Environment Federation out of Alexandria, VA.

We treated 4.1 million gallons of wastewater in June, which is 1.9 million
gallons less than June of last year.

We shipped out 21,000 gallons of sludge.

High Country Contractors hooked onto the town sewer for a new house at
20 Plumley Ave.

Respectfully submitted,

Joe Gaudiana - Ludlow Sewer Department



	Village Trustees Agenda July 2, 2024.pdf
	SKM_C550i24062717070.pdf

